
AGENDA 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

9:00 a.m., Friday, August 17, 2018 

 

EAST TOWER CONFERENCE ROOM 

EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 410 

Topeka, KS 66603 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of July 13, 2018 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, 

an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items 

for further discussion and consideration. 

 

1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  

a. GLI Approval Letters August 2018 

b. BMM Approval Letters August 2018 

2. Internal Control amendment approvals 

a. Boot Hill Casino internal control amendment approvals  

b. Kansas Star Casino internal control amendment approvals 

c. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway internal control amendment approvals  

d. Kansas Crossing Casino internal control amendment approvals  

3. Disciplinary Review Board Settlement/Waivers  

a. Megan Amelia Young, 2018-3004 

i. Staff Memo 

E. Lottery Gaming Facility Reports/Items 



1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

a. Monthly Report 

b. July Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino  

a. Monthly Report 

b. July Revenue Report  

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

a. Monthly Report 

b. July Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  

a. Monthly Report 

b. July Revenue Report  

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

NONE 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

Carol Spiker, Problem Gambling Program Manager, KDADS 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Sarah Lynch-Chaput, Legal Assistant 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report  

2. Don Brownlee, Executive Director  

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open 

Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-



4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s 

attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to 

protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee 

background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the 

confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances.  

1. Confidential Facility Manager Financial Information – Kansas Star Casino, LLC 

2. Attorney/Client Privilege 

3. Background Reports  

 

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals  

L. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

 

MINUTES – JULY 13, 2018 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

(A.) 

 Chairman Brandon Jones called the July 13, 2018 meeting to order at 

10:00 a.m. The meeting was held in the East Tower Conference Room 

of the Eisenhower State Office Building, 700 SW Harrison, in Topeka, 

KS. Commissioners David Moses and Larry Turnquist were also 

present. Others present included Executive Director Don Brownlee, 

General Counsel Judith Taylor, Director of Administration, Audit, and 

Finance Brandi White, Director of Electronic Security and I.T. Dennis 

Bachman, Regional Security Manager Larry Moreland, Recording 

Secretary Sarah Lynch-Chaput, and other staff. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

AGENDA 

(B.) 

 Commissioner Moses (Turnquist) moved to approve the agenda.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

   

MOTION, APPROVE  

JUNE 15, 2018 

MEETING MINUTES 

(C.1.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Moses) moved to approve the minutes of the 

June 15, 2018 meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

   

MOTION, APPROVE 

CONSENT AGENDA  

(D.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Moses) moved to approve the consent 

agenda.   Motion carried unanimously. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; BOOT 

HILL CASINO & RESORT 

(E.1.a.) 

 Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported: 

 June 2018 revenue numbers compared to June 2017: 

o Total gaming revenue increase of 11.62% 

o Total slot revenue up 15.59% 

o Table games revenue down 14.96% 

 Past Promotions and Events: 

o Harley Davidson Motorcycle Giveaway  

o Beat the Heat Promotion  

 Upcoming Promotions and Events: 

o Ram Truck Giveaway 

o Dodge City Days Slot Tournament 

o Justin Moore, July 28th  

o America Live!, September 29th  

o Casting Crowns, October 2nd  



 

 Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report (January 1, 2018 

through June 30, 2018): 

o As of June 30, 2018 – 246 employees 

o Between January 1st and June 30th – 53 employees 

hired 

o All employees scheduled for refresher TIPS and 

responsible gaming training by fourth quarter  

o Refused entry to 3 VEPs  

o Removed 24 VEPs from gaming floor 

o Refused entry to 5 patrons appearing intoxicated 

o Removed 41 patrons appearing intoxicated from 

gaming floor 

o Refused entry to 246 minors 

o Removed 2 minors from gaming floor  

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY REPORTS; 

UPDATE ON SPORTS 

WAGERING AND DEBT 

SETOFF 

(E.1.d.) 

 Matthew Bergman, Attorney for Boot Hill Casino, Kansas Star 

Casino, and Kansas Crossing Casino, reported the position of those 

casinos on legislation for sports wagering in Kansas and the casinos’ 

upcoming participation in the Kansas Debt Setoff Program:  

 There is no current timeframe for the casinos implementing the 

new debt setoff program. The Department of Administration is 

beginning to revise their user manuals to comply with the new 

law, and have presented the casinos with a draft of the user 

manual. 

 On May 14th, the United States Supreme Court held that the 

Professional and Amateur Sports Protection Act (PASPA), 

prohibiting most state and local governments from operating, 

promoting or licensing sports wagering, violated the 

Constitution’s anticommandeering principle and was, 

therefore, unconstitutional. There were several sports wagering 

bills presented in the last Kansas legislative session, but none 

moved out of committee. One interim day of study for sports 

wagering has been approved by the Kansas Legislature. This 

day has not yet been calendared. Last year, the casinos 

supported House Bill 2793 and would likely support similar 

legislation in the upcoming session.  

  

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

 Rick Goldstein, Assistant General Manager, reported: 

 June 2018 revenue numbers compared to June 2017:  

o Admissions down 5.5% 



 

REPORTS/ITEMS; KANSAS 

STAR 

(E.2.a.) 

o Total gross gaming revenue up 1.8% 

o Slot coin-in up 0.7% 

o Slot hold up 0.34 points 

o Table game drop up 1.1% 

o Table game hold down 3.7 points 

o Poker revenue up 2.3%  

 Past Events and Promotions: 

o Bill Engvall, June 16th  

o Grand Funk Railroad, June 30th  

o Ratt with Quiet Riot, July 7th  

 Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Garden Bros Circus, July 14th  

o EFC Fighting Championship, July 21st  

o Jay Leno, August 18th  

o Loverboy, September 29th  

o Midwest Beerfest, October 13th  

 Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report (January 1, 2018 

through June 30, 2018): 

o As of June 30th – 821 employees 

o Between January 1st and June 30th –130 employees 

hired  

o All new employees received responsible gaming and 

alcohol awareness training  

o Refused entry to 164 minors 

o Removed 3 minors from gaming floor 

o Refused entry to 603 patrons for no ID 

o Refused entry to 380 patrons for invalid ID 

o Refused entry to 5 VEPs  

o Removed 10 VEPs from gaming floor  

o Refused entry to 115 individuals appearing intoxicated 

o Ejected 166 individuals appearing intoxicated from 

gaming floor  

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT 

KANSAS SPEEDWAY 

(E.3.a.) 

 Richard Skinner, General Manager,  reported: 

 June 2018 revenue numbers compared to June 2017: 

o Total gaming revenue was $12.5 million, an increase of 

$378,000 or 3.1% 

o Table games revenue was $1.5 million, a decrease of 

$198,000 or 11.5%  

o Slot revenue was $11.0 million, an increase of 

$576,000 or 5.6% 



 

 June Events and Promotions: 

o “Wrangle Your Summer” Jeep Giveaway 

o Kansas Lottery Scratcher Ticket Giveaway 

o VIP Free Pull Party  

o VIP Father’s Day Giveaway 

o Bonus “Coin” Offers  

 Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report (January 1, 2018 

through June 30, 2018): 

o As of June 30th – 656 employees 

o Between January 1st and June 30th – 161 employees 

hired  

o All new employees received responsible gaming 

training 

o Refused entry to 210 minors 

o Refused entry or removed 277 individuals appearing 

intoxicated 

o Removed 11 VEPs from gaming floor   

 Debt Set-Off Update: 

o Penn National does debt set-off in other jurisdictions; 

Other jurisdictions update records in real time 

o Dave Rice, Compliance Manager, spoke to the 

Department of Administration in June 

 Sports Wagering Update: 

o Penn National supports legalizing sports wagering in 

established facilities. 

o Penn National is not supportive of sports wagering in 

all lottery outlets. 

o Sports wagering is a thin margin business.  They have 

a concern over the proposed tax rate. 

   

LOTTERY GAMING 

FACILITY 

REPORTS/ITEMS; KANSAS 

CROSSING CASINO 

(E.4.a.)  

 Doug Fisher, General Manager, reported: 

 June 2018 revenue numbers compared to June 2017: 

o Admissions increased 5.6% 

o Net slot win increased 33.6% 

o Net table win decreased 7.0% 

o Net gaming revenue increased 29.0% 

 Past Events and Promotions: 

o Coleman Cooler and Tumbler Giveaway, June 9th and 

16th 



 

o “Keys to a Good Time” Jeep Cherokee Latitude Top 

Prize 

o $5k Fridays – Top Prize $1,500 Crossing Cash 

o Hairball, Arena Rock Tribute, June 8th  

o Boy Band Review, July 7th  

 Upcoming Events and Promotions: 

o Saturdays in July – Brutus Cash Mine Promotion  

o Dueling Pianos, August 3rd and 4th  

o  Reza, Illusionist, August 25th  

o BoStyx, Boston and Styx Tribute Show, October 13th 

 Semi-Annual Responsible Gambling Report (January 1, 2018 

through June 30, 2018): 

o As of June 30th – 247 employees 

o Between January 1st and June 30th – 81 employees hired  

o All team members have received responsible gambling 

training 

o Refused entry to 130 minors 

o Removed 2 minors from casino floor 

o Refused entry to 25 individuals appearing impaired 

o Ejected 89 individuals appearing impaired  

o No VEPs removed or refused entry between January 1st 

and June 30th  

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

OLD BUSINESS  

(F.) 

 There were no old business items.  

   

COMMISSION ITEMS – 

NEW BUSINESS  

(G.) 

 There were no new business items.     

   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(H.) 

 There were no public comments. 

 
 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

(I.1.a. and I.2) 

 Sarah Lynch-Chaput, Legal Assistant, reported on the Voluntary 

Exclusion Program statistics for the months of May and June 2018.  

 

Executive Director Brownlee reported:  

o The Legislative Coordinating Council approved a day 

of hearings on sports wagering for the federal and state 

committee. This day has not yet been calendared.  



 

o During the last legislative session, none of the 

surrounding states passed sports wagering legislation.  

o Wade Schneider was recently hired as an enforcement 

agent in the Topeka office.  

o Two employees have resigned, one in the electronic 

security division and one from the accounting division. 

o The next commission meeting is scheduled for August 

17, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.   
 

  

MOTION, EXECUTIVE 

SESSION 

(J.1) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Moses) moved that the Commission go into 

executive session for the purpose of confidential attorney-client 

privileged communication relating to gambling machine seizures and 

forfeitures. Those included in the executive session, in addition to the 

commissioners, were the executive director and general counsel. The 

total time for the executive session was anticipated to be ten minutes 

until 11:30 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the 

subject discussed is to be limited as previously described. A full record 

of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of 

the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of the 

executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  The 

motion carried unanimously and the meeting was adjourned to 

executive session at 11:20 a.m. 

   

RECONVENE  The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:30 a.m. with 

all members present.   

   

MOTION, EXECUTIVE 

SESSIONS 

(J.2) 

 Commissioner Moses (Turnquist) moved that the Commission go into 

executive session for the purpose of reviewing confidential 

background reports. Those included in the executive session, in 

addition to the commissioners, were the executive director, general 

counsel, and regional security manager. The total time for the 

executive session was anticipated to be twenty minutes until 11:55 

a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects 

discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full record of 

this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of the 

Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the 

executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The 

motion carried unanimously and the meeting was adjourned to 

executive session at 11:35 a.m. 

   



 

RECONVENE  The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:55 a.m. with 

all members present.  

   

MOTION TO DENY,  

CONDITIONALLY 

APPROVE, APPROVE 

RECONSIDERATION, 

DENY 

RECONSIDERATION, 

TABLE, AND APPROVE 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

(K.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Moses) moved to deny four license 

applications, conditionally approve one license application, and 

approve the remaining 185 license applications from the July 13, 2018 

list of background reports referred to the commission for action.  

Motion carried unanimously.   

 
 

 

ADJOURN 

(L.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Moses) moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion carried unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 

p.m.  

 

   

   

   

   

SUBMITTED BY:   

   

____________________   

Larry Turnquist 

Secretary  

 
 

 
  

APPROVED BY:   

   

____________________   

Brandon Jones  
 

Chairman   
 



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

Manufacturer Report Number ID Number Version Game Name Function

1
AINSWORTH 

GAMING TEC

MO-73-AWG-17-

105
GDINJ01D 1D Super Hot 7s - Quick Spin

PERSONALITY 

PGM

2
AINSWORTH 

GAMING TEC

MO-73-AWG-17-

84
GDINTU4C 4C THUNDER CASH

PERSONALITY 

PGM

3
AINSWORTH 

GAMING TEC

MO-73-AWG-18-

02
GDINZ81D 1D Super Charged 7s - Quick Spin

PERSONALITY 

PGM

4
AINSWORTH 

GAMING TEC

MO-73-AWG-18-

21
KS1K1G9J 9J A600 SAS BASE SOFTWARE MAIN PGM

5 ARISTOCRAT
MO-73-ARI-18-

101
1.03-63915 GEN8 Happy & Prosperous

PERSONALITY 

PGM

6 ARISTOCRAT
MO-73-ARI-18-

102
1.03-63764 N/A World of Riches

PERSONALITY 

PGM

7 ARISTOCRAT
MO-73-ARI-18-

103
1.03-63763 GEN8 Fabulous Riches

PERSONALITY 

PGM

8 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-48 Set Chip 7.02.53.08 N/A
SECURITY/CON

FIG.

9 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-64 171277-290-B 171277-290-B N/A HARDWARE

10 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-64 171278-290-B 171278-290-B N/A HARDWARE

11 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-67 1.01-66537 GEN7/GEN8 Dragon Flies
PERSONALITY 

PGM

12 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-68 1.01-66153 GEN7/GEN8 Golden Amulet
PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

13 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-71 1.01-64030 GEN7/GEN8 Wild Lepre'Coins
PERSONALITY 

PGM

14 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-72 1.01-65974 GEN7/GEN8 Wild Ameri'Coins
PERSONALITY 

PGM

15 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-75 Set Chip 7.02.55.01 N/A
SECURITY/CON

FIG.

16 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-78 1.01-66092 GEN8 Classic 2x3x4x5x Wild
PERSONALITY 

PGM

17 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-80 1.02-66023 GEN8 Buffalo Deluxe
PERSONALITY 

PGM

18 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-82 1.01-66316 GEN8 American Wolf
PERSONALITY 

PGM

19 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-83 1.01-66315 GEN8 American Bison
PERSONALITY 

PGM

20 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-84 1.01-66317 GEN8 American Wings
PERSONALITY 

PGM

21 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-85 1.01-66533 GEN 8 Makin' Cash
PERSONALITY 

PGM

22 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-86 AmL_SCH_01 Vertex American Link Schedules OTHER

23 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-87 RMCash_SCH_02 VERTEX Rockin Makin Cash Schedule OTHER

24 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-88 1.01-66532 GEN8 Rockin’ Cash
PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

25 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-89 1.02-66060 GEN8 Joe Blow Gold
PERSONALITY 

PGM

26 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-90 BIGLF_01 VERTEX Top Fortune/Happy Luck OTHER

27 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-92 1.01-66179 Gen8 Tiger Reign
PERSONALITY 

PGM

28 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-97 1.01-66180 GEN8 Prosperity Pig
PERSONALITY 

PGM

29 ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-18-99 1.02-66109 GEN8 Top Fortune
PERSONALITY 

PGM

30
ARISTOCRA

T 
MO-21-ARI-18-01 5.09.1-1.00.0 GEN7/GEN7X/GEN8 N/A MAIN PGM

31
Aruze Gaming 

America

MO-73-ARZ-18-

59
PCT4050 N/A N/A HARDWARE

32
Aruze Gaming 

America

MO-73-ARZ-18-

59
PX5410-01 N/A N/A HARDWARE

33 BALLY
MO-08-BAL-18-

03
A0E1-000-1000 1000 Lord Of The Rings Rule Them All

PERSONALITY 

PGM

34 BALLY
MO-133-BAL-18-

15
A188-000-1000 1000 Loteria-EL Barril de Fiesta

PERSONALITY 

PGM

35 BALLY
MO-133-BAL-18-

16
A187-000-1000 1000 Loteria - El Mundo

PERSONALITY 

PGM

36 Bally
MO-22-BAL-17-

14
AIN0000000C C

MAIN PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

37 BALLY
MO-22-BAL-18-

04
1493302 1493302 N/A HARDWARE

38 Bally
MO-31-BAL-17-

04
AWI04X0000A A N//A

MAIN PGM

39 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-17-

102
A09B-000-1000 A09B-000-1000 Quick Hit Dragon Super Wheel

PERSONALITY 

PGM

40 Bally
MO-73-BAL-17-

106
AOS0000221B B OPERATING SYSTEM

MAIN PGM

41 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-17-

94
A09A-000-1000 1000 QUICK HIT LAS VEGAS SUPER WHEEL

PERSONALITY 

PGM

42 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

13
A066-000-1020 1020 ANIMAL HOUSE

PERSONALITY 

PGM

43 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

36
A0DA-000-1000 1000 ALL THAT CASH

PERSONALITY 

PGM

44 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

38
A130-000-1000 1000 Far Out Orange

PERSONALITY 

PGM

45 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

40
AIN0000000D D INSTALL INSTALLER

46 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

42
A131-000-1000 1000 Groovy Grape

PERSONALITY 

PGM

47 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

43
A034-000-1000 1000 Hexogems Jewels of Cai Shen

PERSONALITY 

PGM

48 BALLY
MO-73-BAL-18-

50
AM01-000-1010 1010 ULTIMATE PARTY MEDIA CONTROLLER OTHER

49 BALLY WEST LO-00-SHU-17-05
TABLE GAME 

ANALYSIS
N/A Face Up Pai Gow Poker

TABLE 

GAME



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

50 Bally West
LO-00-SHU-18-

02

TABLE GAME 

ANALYSIS
N/A

FACE UP PAI GOW POKER 

PROGRESSIVE

TABLE 

GAME

51 Bally West
MO-50-SHU-17-

01
V4MU0125 V4MU0125 Fusion Virtual - Multigame

PERSONALITY 

PGM

52 Bally West
MO-73-SHU-18-

05

i-

Deal_plus_UI_2.0.215.

bin

2.0.215 N/A OTHER

53 Bally West
MO-73-SHU-18-

05

i-

Deal_plus_UI_2.0.215_

setup.enc1

2.0.215 N/A OTHER

54
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-16-

07
6762 1.0.0-14 MFm_DoubleJackpot777

PERSONALITY 

PGM

55
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-16-

37
6842 1.0.0-2 MFm_LibertyBelles

PERSONALITY 

PGM

56
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-16-

63
6753 1.0.0-4 MFm_Patriot

PERSONALITY 

PGM

57
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-16-

86
6721 1.0.0-19 MFm_GoldenPig

PERSONALITY 

PGM

58
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

11
6906 1.0.1-7 MFm_ElectricDiamond

PERSONALITY 

PGM

59
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

24
6724 1.0.0-9 MFm_JackpotFire

PERSONALITY 

PGM

60
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

27
6726 1.0.0-13 MFm_CycloneJackpots

PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

61
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

46
7180 1.0.0-4 MFm_AtomicMeltdown

PERSONALITY 

PGM

62
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

52
7397 1.0.0-6 MFm_UltraViolet

PERSONALITY 

PGM

63
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-17-

53
7458 1.0.0-3 MFm_RedAlert

PERSONALITY 

PGM

64
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-22-MMG-18-

39
7918 1.0.1-0 MFm_DoubleJackpotBullseye

PERSONALITY 

PGM

65
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-73-MMG-17-

17
7293 1.0.0-8 MFm_TripleJackpotGems

PERSONALITY 

PGM

66
Everi Games, 

Inc.

MO-73-MMG-17-

19
7166 1.0.0-7 MFm_BlackDiamondPlatinum

PERSONALITY 

PGM

67

Global 

Payments 

Gaming 

Services Inc 

MO-73-GPG-18-

01

iVIZION-100 (USA)-

SS/SU
2.80-42 JCM IVIZION BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

BILL 

VALIDATOR

68 IGT MO-10-IGT-18-03 GAME020001GBCS03 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE GHOSTBUSTERS 4D
PERSONALITY 

PGM

69 IGT MO-10-IGT-18-03 GI020001GBCS003 ASCENT INSTALL GHOSTBUSTERS 4D Installer

70 IGT MO-10-IGT-18-03 UCG0176A1 N/A GHOSTBUSTERS 4D OTHER

71 IGT
MO-132-IGT-18-

03
GAME020002NT6D04 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE RED HOT TAMALES

PERSONALITY 

PGM

72 IGT
MO-132-IGT-18-

03
GI020002NT6D004 ASCENT INSTALL RED HOT TAMALES INSTALLER



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

73 IGT
MO-209-IGT-18-

01
GAME020003WF1N04 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE

WHEEL OF FORTUNE - Double 3X 4X 5X 

Times Pay

PERSONALITY 

PGM

74 IGT
MO-209-IGT-18-

01
GI020003WF1N004 ASCENT INSTALL

WHEEL OF FORTUNE - Double 3X 4X 5X 

Times Pay
INSTALLER

75 IGT
MO-209-IGT-18-

02

GAME014-001GKA-

D04
AVP GAME PACKAGE GAME KING 8.3R

PERSONALITY 

PGM

76 IGT
MO-209-IGT-18-

02
PI014-001GKA-D004 AVP INSTALL GAME KING 8.3R INSTALLER

77 IGT
MO-209-IGT-18-

02

PI014-001GKA-

D004.V02
AVP INSTALL GAME KING 8.3R INSTALLER

78 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

124
GAME020005T0IQ01 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE SAN XING BAO XI GOLDEN CELEBRATION

PERSONALITY 

PGM

79 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

124
GI020005T0IQ001 ASCENT INSTALL SAN XING BAO XI GOLDEN CELEBRATION INSTALLER

80 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

125
GAME020005H2CQ02 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE SAN XING BAO XI - GOLDEN FROG

PERSONALITY 

PGM

81 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

125
GI020005H2CQ002 ASCENT INSTALL SAN XING BAO XI - GOLDEN FROG INSTALLER

82 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

100
GAME020005RLRM05 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE HOT ROLL PINK DIAMOND

PERSONALITY 

PGM

83 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

100
GI020005RLRM005 ASCENT INSTALL HOT ROLL PINK DIAMOND INSTALLER

84 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

101
AB020CCYN001 N/A CASH CLIMB FREE GAMES BUNDLE INSTALLER

85 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

101
ASGB020CCYN001 N/A CASH CLIMB FREE GAMES BUNDLE

Personality 

PGM

86 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

106
GAME020003TPTD01 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE Triple Strike

PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

87 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

106
GI020003TPTD001 ASCENT INSTALL Triple Strike INSTALLER

88 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

107
GAME020009IGXB03 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE Elephant King

PERSONALITY 

PGM

89 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

107
GI020009IGXB003 ASCENT INSTALL Elephant King INSTALLER

90 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

108
AI020000J0004 ASCENT INSTALL INSTALL ASCENT020000J0004 INSTALLER

91 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

108
ASCENT020000J0004 N/A J Series MAIN PGM

92 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

110
GAME020003D8AP06 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE JIN LONG 888

PERSONALITY 

PGM

93 IGT
MO-22-IGT-18-

110
GI020003D8AP006 ASCENT INSTALL JIN LONG 888 INSTALLER

94 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-31 DIAGUNV00112 N/A Universal Ascent and UC Diagnostic OTHER

95 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-31 OI0200200505 N/A Install for OS0200000505 / OS020PM00505 INSTALLER

96 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-31 OS0200000505 N/A OS Series J 3.0/4.0 Hardware OTHER

97 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-31 OS020PM00505 N/A OS Series J 4.0ME / 4.0ME V2 / 4.0+ Hard OTHER

98 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-73 GAME020009FGAB03 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE FORTUNE GONG DRAGON
PERSONALITY 

PGM

99 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-73 GI020009FGAB003 ASCENT INSTALL FORTUNE GONG DRAGON INSTALLER

100 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-73 UCGS155A2 N/A FORTUNE GONG SIGN CONTROLLER OTHER

101 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-83 AI014-B0C AVP INSTALL AVP01400597 W/O 2.0, 2.5 Support INSTALLER



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

102 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-83 AI014-B0C.V02 AVP INSTALL AVP01400597 W/O 2.0, 2.5 Support INSTALLER

103 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-83 AVP014-00597 AVP CONFIG PACKAGE B Series MAIN PGM

104 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-83 CONFIG014-007-212 AVP CONFIG PACKAGE B Series Domestic OTHER

105 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-88 GAME020003BGPB01 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE SIZZLING 7s PIGGY PARADE
PERSONALITY 

PGM

106 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-88 GI020003BGPB001 ASCENT INSTALL SIZZLING 7s PIGGY PARADE INSTALLER

107 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-92 GAME020009FKDN03 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE FORT KNOX MAJESTIC GORILLA
PERSONALITY 

PGM

108 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-92 GI020009FKDN003 ASCENT INSTALL FORT KNOX MAJESTIC GORILLA INSTALLER

109 IGT MO-22-IGT-18-93 DIAGUNV00113 N/A UNIVERSAL ASCENT AND UC DIAGNOSTIC OTHER

110 IGT
MO-286-IGT-18-

02

GAME014-003WS1-

N02
AVP GAME PACKAGE WHEEL OF FORTUNE WILD SIZZLING 777

PERSONALITY 

PGM

111 IGT
MO-286-IGT-18-

02
GI014-003WS1-N002 AVP INSTALL WHEEL OF FORTUNE WILD SIZZLING 777 INSTALLER

112 IGT
MO-394-IGT-18-

19

AF014-MM-PKRGKA-

01
N/A GAME KING 8.3R OTHER

113 IGT
MO-394-IGT-18-

19
FEAT014-0PCGKA-001 AVP FEATURE PACKAGE GAME KING 8.3R OTHER

114 IGT MO-73-IGT-17-70 GAME020003G0CB01 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
Legend of the 3x 2x Phoenix Progressive 

Free Games

PERSONALITY 

PGM

115 IGT MO-73-IGT-17-70 GI020003G0CB001 ASCENT INSTALL
Legend of the 3x 2x Phoenix Progressive 

Free Games
INSTALLER



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

116 IGT MO-73-IGT-17-75 GAME020003TDPB03 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE
TRIPLE DOUBLE DIAMOND PROGRESSIVE 

FREE GAMES

PERSONALITY 

PGM

117 IGT MO-73-IGT-17-75 GI020003TDPB003 ASCENT INSTALL
TRIPLE DOUBLE DIAMOND PROGRESSIVE 

FREE GAMES
INSTALLER

118 IGT MO-73-IGT-18-83 GAME020009FKCN02 ASCENT GAME PACKAGE FORT KNOX TWIN WIN
PERSONALITY 

PGM

119 IGT MO-73-IGT-18-83 GI020009FKCN002 ASCENT INSTALL FORT KNOX TWIN WIN INSTALLER

120
INCREDIBLE 

TECHNOLOG
MO-22-INT-18-04 G00292 01.05.55 Heat'em Up VIP

PERSONALITY 

PGM

121
INCREDIBLE 

TECHNOLOG
MO-73-INT-18-35 G00356 01.04.136 Heat'em Up Power Wheel VIP

PERSONALITY 

PGM

122
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-16-

77

KGI_M527MLK011WD

00
GAME PROGRAM Nouveau Beauties

PERSONALITY 

PGM

123
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-16-

83

KGI_M516MLH012WD

00
GAME PROGRAM Sizzling Hearts

PERSONALITY 

PGM

124
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

102

KGI_M623SRB011WD0

0
GAME PROGRAM Golden Power Ingots

PERSONALITY 

PGM

125
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

150

KGI_M538SRB040WD0

3
GAME PROGRAM Celestial Sun Riches

PERSONALITY 

PGM

126
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

151

KGI_M537SRB040WD0

3
GAME PROGRAM Celestial Moon Riches

PERSONALITY 

PGM

127
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

173

KGI_M590MLB020WD

00
GAME PROGRAM 5 Elemental Legends

PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Approval GLI Testlabs

128
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

18

KGI_M577MLB011WD

00
GAME PROGRAM Great Moai

PERSONALITY 

PGM

129
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-17-

48

KGI_M589SRH011WD

00
GAME PROGRAM African Beat

PERSONALITY 

PGM

130
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-18-

11

KGI_M545SRD021WD

09
GAME PROGRAM Purr-fect Catnap

PERSONALITY 

PGM

131
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-18-

47

KGI_M551MLB020WD

09
Game Program Mammoth Power

PERSONALITY 

PGM

132
KONAMI 

GAMING INC.

MO-73-KON-18-

90

iVIZION-100 (USA)-

SS/SU
2.80-42 JCM IVIZION BILL VALIDATOR FIRMWARE

BILL 

VALIDATOR

133 WMS
MO-209-WMS-18-

02
SEAB-000-1020 1020 H19.091 James Bond - Diamonds Are Forever

PERSONALITY 

PGM



Recommended for Revocation GLI Testlabs

Manufacturer Report Number ID Number Version Game Name Function Replace With Replaced By

1
AINSWORTH 

GAMING TEC

MO-73-AWG-17-

100
KS1K1G9I 9I A600 SAS BASE SOFTWARE

MAIN 

PGM
KS1K1G9J 16-Sep-18

2
ARISTOCRA

T

MO-73-ARI-17-

103
1.02-63915 GEN8 Happy & Prosperous

PERSO

NALITY 

PGM

1.03-63915 16-Sep-18

3
ARISTOCRA

T

MO-73-ARI-17-

146
SET CHIP

7.02.53.0

5
N/A

SECURI

TY/CON

FIG

Set Chip 16-Sep-18

4 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

300
AI020000J0002

ASCENT 

INSTALL
Install ASCENT020000J0002

INSTALL

ER
AI020000J0004 10/16/2018

5 IGT
MO-22-IGT-17-

300

ASCENT020000J00

02
N/A J Series

MAIN 

PGM

ASCENT020000

J0004
10/16/2018



Recommended for Approval BMM Testlabs

Manufacturer Report Number ID Number Version Game Name Function

1 Aristocrat ATI11422KS 1.01-66110 GEN8 Rockin' Cash Game

2 Aristocrat ATI12251KS 1.01-66158 GEN8 Vegas Wins Game

3 Aristocrat ATI12411KS 1.02-66154 GEN8 Ocean Song Game

4 Aristocrat ATI12461KS 1.01-66702 GEN8 Fu Fu Fu - Panda Edition Game

5 Aristocrat ATI12471KS 1.01-66703 GEN8 Fu Fu Fu - Tiger Edition Game

6 IGT IGTU14361KS AVP4 V2 ASCENT Brain Box Hardware



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 
 

 

Boot Hill Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

August 17, 2018 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

BH515 – Surveillance Jackpots 

(WAIVER) 
Yes KAR 112-106-6 / IC 310.030 Approval 

BH516 – Donated Funds No IC 120.110 Approval 

BH517 – Table Inventory Slip No KAR 112-108-28 / IC 200.080 Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Donald Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 
Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

August 17, 2018 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

KS252 – Bonus Craps No 
KAR 112-108-6 / Table Games Rules of 

Game § 4 – Craps 
Approval 

KS256 – BSA Training No KAR 112-104-6 / Admin. § 14 - BSA Approval 

KS260 – Slot Shift Supervisor No 
KAR 112-107-27 / Slots § 11 - Personal 

Banker (eCredit) 
Approval 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 
 

 

Hollywood Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

August 17, 2018 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 
Regulation 

Waiver? 
Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

HW136 – Mississippi Stud 

Progressive 
No 

Rules of the Game – Mississippi Stud 

Progressive 
Approval 

HW137 – Three Card Poker 

with Six Card Bonus Wager 
No 

Rules of the Game – Three Card Poker 

with Six Card Bonus Wager 
Approval 

HW138 – Slots  No Org Charts / Job Descriptions Approval 

HW140 – Information 

Technology 
No 

KAR 112-104-25 / Chapter I: 1.03 (C)(1) 

and 1.14(B) 
Approval 

HW142 – TriLux Bonus No Rules of the Game – TriLux Bonus Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 
 

 

Kansas Crossing Casino Internal Control Amendments 

 

August 17th , 2018 

 

 

Item #/ (Description) 

Regulation 

Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference 

Staff 

Recommendation 

KC69- Purchasing No KAR 112-104-42; KCC 46 Approval 

KC70- Card and Dice No 
KAR 112-108-21; KAR 112-108-23; KCC 

111; KCC 113 
Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800, Fax (785) 296-0900 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 
STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE OF MEETING: August 17, 2018 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Disciplinary Review Board Summary Proceeding Orders for:  

2018-3004 Megan Amelia Young 
 
PRESENTER:  None – Consent Agenda 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY: Pursuant to K.A.R. 112-114-1 et seq., the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission’s Disciplinary Review Board (DRB) considered potential gaming regulation 
violations by licensee Megan Amelia Young. A Summary Proceeding Order and Notice of 
Hearing and Right to Waive was issued. 
 
2018-3004 Megan Amelia Young 
 
 On October 22, 2017, Megan Amelia Young, a security supervisor, was on duty at 
Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway. During Ms. Young’s shift, three patrons were 
determined to be intoxicated and escorted out of the casino. One of the patrons reentered the 
casino and a surveillance agent notified security personnel that one of the intoxicated patrons 
had reentered and was gambling at an EGM. Ms. Young approached the intoxicated patron but 
allowed the intoxicated patron to remain in the casino. The intoxicated patron was later 
approached by a security supervisor and food and beverage supervisor, was again determined 
to be intoxicated, and was escorted out of the casino. After reentering the casino, the 
intoxicated patron gambled at an EGM for approximately 26 minutes. Ms. Young was ordered 
to serve a two-day suspension. Ms. Young has stipulated to the above facts and waived the 
right to a hearing. See attached Summary Proceeding Order and Hearing Waiver. 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED: Accept the Hearing Waiver filed by Megan 
Young and uphold the DRB’s Summary Proceeding Order issued in KRGC Case No. 2018-3004. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends the Commission accept the Hearing Waiver 
filed by Megan Young and uphold the DRB’s findings of fact, conclusions of law, and sanction 
issued in KRGC Case No. 2018-3004. 
 





























 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

AUGUST 17, 2018 

 

BY: Diane Giardine 

 

1) For the month of July 2018, BHCR experienced an increase in Total Gaming Revenue of 

3.34% over prior year July 2017.  Total Slot revenue was up 2.43% while Table Games 

revenue was up 10.09%.   

 

 

 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 

 Senior Monday Promotions 

 Win It Again – Jackpot Redraws! 

 Hot Seats 

 Free Play Bonus 

 Whirl of Winnings 

 $26,000 Free Play Giveaways 

 Stay & Play Hotel Packages 

 Birthday Parties 

 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  

 Intocable at United Wireless Arena, September 8, 2018 

 Tracy Byrd at Boot Hill Casino Conference Center, September 13, 2018 

 America Live! At United Wireless Arena, September 29, 2018 

 Casting Crowns at United Wireless Arena, October 2, 2018 

 Hairball at United Wireless Arena, October 12, 2018 

 Scotty McCreery at United Wireless Arena, October 27, 2018 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  July  July  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2018  2017  2019  2018 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

      
3,106,065.57   

    
3,032,584.05   

      
3,106,065.57   

      
3,032,584.05  

         

Table games  

          
454,566.00   

       
412,886.34   

          
454,566.00   

          
412,886.34  

         

Other #  

                    
63.10   

                 
34.80   

                    
63.10   

                    
34.80  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

      
3,560,694.67   

    
3,445,505.19   

      
3,560,694.67   

      
3,445,505.19  

         

State Share 22%  

          
783,352.83   

       
758,011.14   

          
783,352.83   

          
758,011.14  

         

Local Share 3%  

          
106,820.84   

       
103,365.16   

          
106,820.84   

          
103,365.16  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

            
71,213.89   

          
68,910.10   

            
71,213.89   

            
68,910.10  

         

Casino Share 73%  

      
2,599,307.11   

    
2,515,218.79   

      
2,599,307.11   

      
2,515,218.79  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         
 



KANSAS STAR CASINO 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

August 17, 2018 

BY:  

Rick Goldstein – Assistant General Manager 

 

Operational Notes 

 July admissions down 7.4% from July 2017. 

Past Arena Events 

 June 30 – Grand Funk Railroad 

 July 7 – Ratt w/ Quiet Riot  

 July 14 – Garden Bros Circus 

 July 21 – EFC Fighting Championship 

 August 3 – Peter Frampton 

Upcoming Events 

 August 18 – Jay Leno 

 September 29 – Loverboy 

 October 10 – Evolution Fighting Championship 

 October 13 – Midwest Beerfest 

 Nov. 2-3 – National Final Steer Roping 

July 2018 Revenue #’s 

 Total Gross Gaming Revenue down 0.2% from July 2017. 

 Slot Coin-In (Handle) up 0.7% from July 2017. 

 Slot hold (gross) down 0.07 pts from July 2017. 

 Table Game drop up 4.1% from July 2017. 

 Table Game hold is down 1.3 pts vs. July 2017. 

 Poker Room revenue up 4.4% from July 2017.  
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  July  July  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2018  2017  2019  2018 

         

Electronic gaming machines      13,223,530.36     13,123,200.25       13,223,530.36       13,123,200.25  

         

Table games        2,281,608.46       2,322,433.05         2,281,608.46         2,322,433.05  

         

Other #                      58.32                    88.96                       58.32                       88.96  

         

Total Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue      15,505,197.14     15,445,722.26       15,505,197.14       15,445,722.26  

         

State Share 22% (Tier 1)**        3,411,143.37       3,398,058.90         3,411,143.37         3,398,058.90  

         

State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**                            -                             -                               -                               -    

         

Local Share 3%            465,155.91          463,371.67             465,155.91             463,371.67  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%            310,103.94          308,914.45             310,103.94             308,914.45  

         

Casino Share  73%      11,318,793.91     11,275,377.25       11,318,793.91       11,275,377.25  

         

 

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

         

 

         
 



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
August 17, 2018 

 
BY: RICK SKINNER – VICE PRESIDENT & GENERAL MANAGER 

 
July 2018 

Total Gaming Revenue for July 2018 was $12.8M which was an increase of $467K, or a 3.8% 
increase compared to July of 2017.  
 
Slot Revenue came in at $11.4M which was an increase of $515K, or 4.7%, above prior year. 
 
Table Games Revenue was down slightly at $1.4M, which was a decrease of $47K, or 3.3%, 
compared to last year.  
 
July was another strong month for Hollywood Casino even though admissions were down 1.4%. 
During the month, we featured our usual compliment of marketing promotions including point 
and entry multipliers. Our top draws for the month were our Play, Earn, and Get Promotion, the 
$50,000 Big Wheel Bonanza, and our VIP Mystery Drum Giveaway. Those three weekend 
promotions really helped drive additional slot revenue. 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  July  July  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2018  2017  2019  2018 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

  
11,383,498.30   

  
10,868,769.93   

    
11,383,498.30   

    
10,868,769.93  

         

Table games  

    
1,403,927.04   

    
1,451,317.02   

      
1,403,927.04   

      
1,451,317.02  

         

Other #  

                 
75.39   

               
181.35   

                    
75.39                    181.35  

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

  
12,787,500.73   

  
12,320,268.30   

    
12,787,500.73   

    
12,320,268.30  

         

State Share 22%  

    
2,813,250.16   

    
2,710,459.03   

      
2,813,250.16   

      
2,710,459.03  

         

Local Share 3%  

       
383,625.02   

       
369,608.05   

          
383,625.02   

          
369,608.05  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

       
255,750.01   

       
246,405.37   

          
255,750.01   

          
246,405.37  

         

Casino Share 73%  

    
9,334,875.53   

    
8,993,795.86   

      
9,334,875.53   

      
8,993,795.86  

         

         

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         
 



KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 

REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

August 17, 2018 
 

BY: Doug Fisher 
 

Compared to last July Kansas Crossing Casino experienced the following 

preliminary results; 
   

 5% increase in admissions 

 21% increase in Forecasted Net Slot Win 

 21% increase in Table Win 

 20% overall increase in Net Gaming Revenue 

 

Promotions + Events 
 

 July –  

o 4 – We celebrated the 4th of July with Hot Seats, Free Slot Pulls, Free 

Hot Dogs as well as sponsoring the City’s Fireworks Show.  

o 7 & 14 – Qualified players received a set of flatware and dinnerware. 

o Every Saturday guests had a chance to grab cash in our Brutus Cash 

mine promotion. 

o Every Wednesday – Camp 49 Kiosk Game 

 

 August –  

o 5, 12, 19 – 100 winners each day will win $100 in Free Play. 

o 18 – Blackjack Tournament 

o 25 – Jeep Wrangler Giveaway  

o 26 - VIP Slot Tournament 

o 30 – Beach Vacation Giveaway 

o Every Wednesday – Camp 49 Slot Tournament 

 

 

 



The Corral Stage 

 

   Previous Events 

o July 7 – Boy Band Review 

o August 3rd and 4th - Dueling Pianos 

 Upcoming Events 

o August 25th – Reza, Illusionist 

o September 15th – Walkout MMA 

o October 13th – BoStyx, A Boston and Styx rock tribute show featuring 

David Victor, former vocalist/guitarist for Boston. This will be our first 

outdoor event 

o October 27th – Quiet Riot 

 

Responsible Gambling Awareness Week 

 Random One-on-One Quizzes and a Crossword Puzzle for the Team 

Members 

 Informational Posters 

 Presence on South East Kansas Task Force Facebook Page 

 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 

         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 

         

  July  July  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2018  2017  2019  2018 

         

Electronic gaming machines  

      
2,610,148.10   

    
2,178,671.01   

      
2,610,148.10   

      
2,178,671.01  

         

Table games  

          
209,976.50   

       
173,048.00   

          
209,976.50   

          
173,048.00  

         

Other #  

                    
59.00                           -     

                    
59.00                             -    

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  

      
2,820,183.60   

    
2,351,719.01   

      
2,820,183.60   

      
2,351,719.01  

         

State Share 22%  

          
620,440.39   

       
517,378.18   

          
620,440.39   

          
517,378.18  

         

Local Share 3%  

            
84,605.51   

          
70,551.57   

            
84,605.51   

            
70,551.57  

         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  

            
56,403.67   

          
47,034.38   

            
56,403.67   

            
47,034.38  

         

Casino Share 73%  

      
2,058,734.03   

    
1,716,754.88   

      
2,058,734.03   

      
1,716,754.88  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

         
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 

Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 

Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 

Don Brownlee, Executive Director Jeff Colyer, Governor 

 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 

EGM 3,106,066$             13,223,530$               11,383,498$             2,610,148$                         30,323,242$               

Table Games 454,566                   2,281,608                   1,403,927                 209,977                               4,350,078                   

Other # 63                             58                                75                              59                                         256                              

Total 3,560,695$            15,505,197$              12,787,501$            2,820,184$                        34,673,576$              

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

2010 20,663,987$           -$                                 -$                               -$                                         20,663,987$               

2011 40,055,280             -                                   -                                 -                                            40,055,280                 

2012 43,886,501             98,855,928                 54,622,687               -                                            197,365,116               

2013 43,353,504             192,187,166               124,993,721             -                                            360,534,391               

2014 39,906,275             181,079,650               132,036,392             -                                            353,022,317               

2015 40,513,186             181,754,051               142,759,065             -                                            365,026,302               

2016 38,937,088             181,600,677               143,833,330             -                                            364,371,095               

2017 40,222,932             178,105,968               144,582,037             8,206,260                           371,117,197               

2018 41,186,638             182,084,527               148,770,984             32,465,853                         404,508,001               

2019 3,560,695               15,505,197                 12,787,501               2,820,184                           34,673,576                 

Total Since Opening 352,286,085$        1,211,173,164$        904,385,716$          43,492,296$                      2,511,337,263$        

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos

State of Kansas 783,353$                3,411,143$                 2,813,250$               620,440$                            7,628,187$                 

Local Governments 106,821                   465,156                      383,625                    84,606                                 1,040,207                   

Problem Gambling and 

Addictions Fund 71,214                     310,104                      255,750                    56,404                                 693,472                      

Casino Manager 2,599,307               11,318,794                 9,334,876                 2,058,734                           25,311,711                 

Total 3,560,695$            15,505,197$              12,787,501$            2,820,184$                        34,673,576$              

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 

State of Kansas 77,502,938.77$     266,458,096.17$       198,964,857.61$     9,568,305.20$                   552,494,197.76$       

Local Governments 10,568,582.56       36,335,194.93           27,131,571.49         1,304,768.89                      75,340,117.88           

Problem Gambling and 

Addictions Fund 7,045,721.71          24,223,463.29           18,087,714.33         869,845.93                         50,226,745.25           

Casino Manager 257,168,842.28     884,156,410.02         660,201,572.99       31,749,376.36                   1,833,276,201.65      

Total 352,286,085.32$  1,211,173,164.41$   904,385,716.43$    43,492,296.38$                2,511,337,262.54$   

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

July 2018 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending July 31, 2018

Cumulative Casino Gaming Revenue  for Month Ending July 31, 2018

Fund Distribution FY 2019

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
  

 
 

 
                        

 
 

 
 

 
08.02.2018 

62.4%
37.6%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

66.0%
34.0%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.2% 1.0%

24.4%

14.6%

48.6%

1.8%
9.4%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.8%

21.2%

27.6% 26.8%

15.5%

5.2%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

2 2 2 1 1 1 2 0
4 2 0 1

6 4 3 5 3 4
0

3 2 2 4
7

23
20

26

16
19 19 20

27 26
29

19

25

37

26
22

17
20

24
28 27 28 27 29

24

38

27

34

20
24

18 20
25 25

15

28
23

16

31

22
17

25
21 20 18 20

27 25 2523

31 33

27

16

25 23 22
17

29

16 18

34

13

28
33

19 21 20
15

31
27 27

2422
18

24
27

24

14

21

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 – July 2018 

Voluntary Exclusions = 1927 
Violation Incidents = 225 (181 individuals) 

 

African Am.
9.7%

Asian/P.I.
17.6%

Caucasian
58.4%

Lat/His
12.0%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.8%

Ethnicity



 

 

 

 

  

    

08/02/2018 

KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons 
December 2009 – July 2018 

 

Colorado – 1  
Iowa – 1  
Kansas-1,732 
Missouri – 147     
Nebraska – 4  
Oklahoma – 26         
Other-16 
 
 

  

TOTAL VEPs = 1937 

 

15 

 

14
 

4 
38 

 181 

 

831 

 

 

 

 

19 

1 
15 

1 
43 

 

 

213 

 

39 

 

 

 

2 

2 

116 

 34 

 

 
4 

 5 
14 

5 

 

1 

 

2 

 

30 

 

2 

 
2 

1 

 2 

13 

 

7 

7 

 

 

3 

1 

3 

 

 
   2 

  7 

16 

 

 

 

2 

2 

1 

3 

1 

2 

1 

2 

3 

 

4 

2 1 

1 1 

2 1 

1 3 

1 

1 

4 

 

2 



All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,978,720        Beg. Balance 270,377            Beg. Balance 15,324              Beg. Balance 69,972             

Revenue 740,973            Revenue 25,132              Revenue ‐                         Revenue ‐                        
Expenses 543,109            Expenses 14,292              Expenses ‐                         Expenses ‐                        
End Balance 4,176,584        End Balance 281,217            End Balance 15,324              End Balance 69,972             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2018 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2019 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
July FY2018 
ACTUALS

July FY2019 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
YTD FY2019 
BUDGET

YTD FY2019 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 391,455 418,293 26,838 7% 391,455 418,293 26,838 7% 523,437 418,293 ‐105,143 ‐20%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐10,273 0 10,273 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 391,455 418,293 26,838 7% 391,455 418,293 26,838 7% 513,164 418,293 ‐94,871 ‐18%

52000 Communication 33 1,000 967 2965% 33 1,000 967 2965% 7,100 1,000 ‐6,100 ‐86%
52100 Freight and Express 533 179 ‐354 ‐66% 533 179 ‐354 ‐66% 113 179 66 59%
52200 Printing and Advertising 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 150 0 ‐150 ‐100%
52300 Rents 50,637 51,285 647 1% 50,637 51,285 647 1% 20,067 51,285 31,218 156%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 30 0 ‐30 ‐100% 30 0 ‐30 ‐100% 4,642 0 ‐4,642 ‐100%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 1,909 1,957 48 2% 1,909 1,957 48 2% 7,695 1,957 ‐5,738 ‐75%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 15,939 2,221 ‐13,717 ‐86% 15,939 2,221 ‐13,717 ‐86% 4,941 2,221 ‐2,720 ‐55%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 16 0 ‐16 ‐100% 16 0 ‐16 ‐100% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 50,824 28,153 ‐22,671 ‐45% 50,824 28,153 ‐22,671 ‐45% 25,666 28,153 2,487 10%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 790 153 ‐637 ‐81% 790 153 ‐637 ‐81% 10,808 153 ‐10,656 ‐99%
52900 Other Contractual Services 396 0 ‐396 ‐100% 396 0 ‐396 ‐100% 1,224 0 ‐1,224 ‐100%
Subtotal Contractual Services 121,105 84,947 ‐36,158 ‐30% 121,105 84,947 ‐36,158 ‐30% 82,406 84,947 2,541 3%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 292 0 ‐292 ‐100%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 63 0 ‐63 ‐100% 63 0 ‐63 ‐100% 2,238 0 ‐2,238 ‐100%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 2,230 0 ‐2,230 ‐100%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 816 181 ‐635 ‐78% 816 181 ‐635 ‐78% 6,258 181 ‐6,077 ‐97%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 170 930 759 446% 170 930 759 446% 680 930 250 37%
Subtotal Commodities 1,049 1,111 62 6% 1,049 1,111 62 6% 11,698 1,111 ‐10,587 ‐91%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 2,780 0 ‐2,780 ‐100% 2,780 0 ‐2,780 ‐100% 10,858 0 ‐10,858 ‐100%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 516,389 504,351 ‐12,038 ‐2% 516,389 504,351 ‐12,038 ‐2% 618,126 504,351 ‐113,775 ‐18%

Cash Fund Balances as of July 31, 2018
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




